nishing employment to a considerable number of arti- every facility for water carriage and excellent anchorage and petty sessions are held every Friday.

the town, in 1841, 1,751.

sans; and many others of the labouring classes are occu- for vessels of almost any burthen. The village, which pied in discharging the cargoes of large vessels, as none altogether is remarkably pleasant, comprises a large above 400 or 500 tons burthen can preceed up the river to sumber of pretty detached villas; some of these are really Cork. A constabulary police station is established here, elegant, especially those situated near the shore, built in the Elizabethan style, of which there are several. The church, a neat edifice, was considerably enlarged. The environs are embelished with many beautiful in 1808, and the Roman Catholic chapel, a rather handseast placed in delightful situations—amongst these are some structure, was built in 1832. A parochial school, "Rock Lodge," the residence of the Hou, Jas. Tobin; the one in connexion with the Catholic chapel, and a fever ! Castle, B. R. Shaw, Esq. ; 'Carrickmahan,' De Courcy hospital and dispensary, comprise the charities. There O'Grady, Esq. &c. The bath establishment of the Royal are neither markets or fairs, but the town is pretty well Victoria Hotel, conducted by Mr. Gorham, and that supplied with all the necessaries of fife. Population of also by Mr. Browne, are fitted up with elegance and ne town, in 1841, 1,751. | every appropriate convenience—they comprise warm, Monkstown, a village, in the parish of its name, in cold, vapour, &c. baths. This place is so closely allied the same barony as Passage, about one mile from that to Passage as respects distance, matters of business, town, like it, seated on the western bank of the Lee and local interests, that it may well be deemed a suriver, and on the new line of road from Carrigaline to burban portion of that town. The church, which stands the city of Cork. It is said to have obtained its name on a pleasing elevation, is cruciform, with a lower and from a small establishment of Benedictine monks, be-longing to the priory of St. John's, Waterford, which dow exhibits some armorial bearings in stained glass. settled here in the fourteenth century, and founded. The public schools are at Passage, and, like that place, Legan Abbey, of which no traces remain. The parish Monkstown holds neither markets or fairs. The parish is bounded on the east and south-east by the Lee be- of Monkstown contained, in 1841, 3,487 inhabitants. fore-mentioned and Cove harbour, the river affording and the township (or village) 538 of that number.

POST OFFICE, PASSAGE, Robert Clarke, Post Master .- Letters from all parts arrive (by mail car from Cork) every morning at nine and afternoon at four, and are despatched thereto every morning at six and afternoon at half-past one.

* * The names without address are in Passage.

NOBILITY, CENTRY AND CLERGY. Howard Luke,

Abbott Samuel, Esq. Horse Head Baylee Major Pery, Bath terrace, Passage [broke Boland Thomas Parsons, Esq. Pem-Brown Henry, Esq. Passage Brown William, Esq. Passage

Day Rev. W. Tottenham, Glebe House England Rev. Thomas, P. P. Passage Hawkes Corless, Esq. Lack row.

Monkstown Hill Thomas, Esq. Passage [West Hornibrook Mrs. -, Green Passage Irvine Capt. John Colefield, Grove Hill, Passage

Johnson Mr. Benj. M. D. Dispensary Johnson Noble, Esq. Rockenham Lidwell Rbt. Esq. Green Passage West Lloyd Richd.Esq.GreenPassageWest Lyons Mr. -, Bath terrace, Passage Murphy Rev. Simon, c. c. Monks-

town O'Grady de Courcy, Esq. Carrickmahan, Monkstown Parker Mrs. Catherine, RockCottage,

Monkstown Parker Neville, Esq. Water View,

Monkstown [Monkstown Parker Capt. Nicholas S. Belleview, Parker Capt. Nichoras S. Ochectici, Parker Mr. Richard Neville, Bath Barry Honora [West] Buckley Ann Callaway Hen terrace, Passage Phipps Michael, Esq. Green Passage Reardon Mrs. Mary, Passage Roberts John, Esq. Armore

Shaw Bernard Robert, Esq. the Castle Cotterill John Tobin the Hon. James, Rock Lodge, Finn Martha Warren Henry, Esq. Fairy Hill, Fahey Michael
Monkstown

MonkstownWigstron, John, Esq. Passage

ACADEMIES AND SCHOOLS. CATHOLIC SCHOOL, Daniel Dorgan, Imistress INFANTS' SCHOOL, Jemima Martin,

Jones Ann (boarding & day), Green | Macklin Stephenira Passage West M'Daniel Cornelius (day) PAROCHIAL SCHOOL, John Curran, Barry James,

master; Jane Curran, mistress Wigstrom Eliza (boarding and day) | Barry John Sars-

Phipps Michl. Green Passage West Barry Thomas 302

BAKERS.

Kirkland William Mentern Michael Thomas John

Browne Richard (warm, cold and vapour), Cabinet Baths, Passage and Monkstown Gorham Edward (warm, cold and

vapour), the Strand, Passage, and

BOOT AND SHOE MAKERS. Connell David Hennessy Jas.

Doyle Edward O'Keeffe Daul. FitzgibbonPatrick | Wilson Stephen CABINET MAKERS.

Browne Richard (and anctioneer and land and estate agent,) Passage Kirkland Wm. Potter Thomas and Monkstown

COAL DEALERS. Clarke Michael Mentern Michael

HOTEL. HOTEL.

Caddagan Michael, saddler, Passage
Connor Edmund, cooper, Passage
Murphy Daniel, blacksmith, Passage Royal Victoria Family Bath Hotel, Passage and Monkstown

LODGING HOUSES. Austin William | Hall John Barry Honoria Johnson John Johnson William Callaway Henry Lewis Catherine Clarke Thomas M'Swiney Ant Cooper Roche James Taylor Mary

Wellan Mary Pearse Michael

PAINTERS AND GLAZIERS. Eccles Samuel Whitehead John

PAWNBROKERS.

Hegarty Daniel

PUBLIC HOUSES. Ahearn James Monkstown

Cotter Pierce Leary Ellen Murphy Barthlw. Murphy Mary Southwell Ellen Sweetman Henry

SHIP BUILDERS & OWNERS.

Brown William & Henry (& general merchants & dock owners), Victoria dock yard, West Passage

SHIPWRIGHTS. Cotter Wm. (and | Field Cornelius blacksmith) Hennessy Mchl. Best John Taylor James

SHOPKEEPERS & DEALERS IN SUNDRIES.

Barry Jane M'Swiney Ellen Callaghan John | Madden John Clarke Michael Mentern Michl. O'Leary John Halliran Michl. Hegarty Jane O'Toole Mary Howard Luke Patterson Henry Keller Mary Ann | Payne Eliza Jane KingstonSusanh. Penny William

TAILORS.

Conglan James Flyna Denis

Miscellaneous.

PLACES OF WORSHIP. And their Ministers.

ESTABLISHED CHURCH, Passage-Rev. William Tottenham Day, perpetual

within Tohennam Day, perpetual curate, Glebe House
ROMAN CATHOLIC CHAPEL, Passage—
Rev. Thomas England, parish priest,
Passage; Rev. Simon Murphy, curate,

Public Institutions, &c.

CONSTABULARY STATION, Passage-Oliver Hepburne, head constable. DISPENSARY, Passage—Mr. Benjamin Johnson, attending physician. REVENUE STATION, Passage—Maurice Leyne, tide sur veyor

CARS. To CORK, the Royal Mail Car, every morning at six, and afternoon at balfpast one—Cars may also be hired at any hour, from eight in the morning

CONVEYANCE BY WATER: To CORK, Steamers call at Passage to receive and disembark passengers several times a day.
To COVE, Ferry Boots every ten minutes,

where there are Cars in attendance.

till eight in the evening.

PORTLAW. HIS is a thriving little village, partly in the parish The number of hands employed is about thirteen hun-of Clonagam, and partly in that of Guileagh, barony of dred, and all the machinery used is made on the premises. raw material, and finishing the fabric complete for use. township (or village) of Portlaw 3,647 of that number.

Upperthird, county of Waterford, about 102 miles s.w. A canal has been cut by the spirited proprietor of from Dublin and 11 w. from Waterford; situated on these works from hence to the river Suir. The health, the small but rapid river Clodagh, and on the confines education, and morals of this newly-erected colony of Curraghmore Park, the princely scat of the Marquess have been most landably and vigilantly watched by of Waterford; in addition to this beautiful demesne, its patrons, and a dispensary and reading-room have the scenery around is exceedingly picturesque. Twenty been established by them. Premises for a school, years ago there was scarcely a cabin to be seen on the to be conducted upon the national plan, are now being spot which is now the site of a flourishing colony, busy erected. The places of worship are the parish church and joyous with the hum of remunerated industry, and chapels each for Roman Catholics and Presby-This happy change originated in the establishment of terians. Fairs are held within the limits of Clonagain the extensive cotton factory of Messis. Malcomson parish on Easter Monday, May 28th, and August 26th. Brothers. The process embraces the preparation of the That parish contained, in 1841, 4,759 inhabitants, and the

POST OFFICE, Robert Shaw, Post Master .- Letters from Dublin and all parts of Ireland, also from ENGLAND, arrive (by horse post from CARRICK-ON-SUIR) every morning at nine, and are despatched every afternoon at three.

NOBILITY, GENTRY AND CLERGY.

Austen Rev. Patrick, c.c. Portlaw Clelland Rev. James, Portlaw Curran Rev. Walter, c.c. Portlaw Malcomson Joseph, Esq. Mayfield House Malcomson William, Esq. Milford Medlycott Miss Maria, Portlaw

Medlycott Rev. John Thos. Rockett's Monk Rev. George Stanley, rector, Rourke Rev. Michael, p.r. Portlaw Shaw Robert, Esq. Mayfield Waterford the Most Noble the Mar quis of, Carraghmore

PROPESSIONAL PERSONS,

INCLUDING SCHOOLS. Martin James, surgeon, Portlaw PARISH SCHOOL, Portlaw (for boys and girls)-James Egan, master Reynett John, surgeon, Portlaw

COTTON MANUFACTURERS.

Malcomson Brothers, cotton manufacturers, PORTLAW MILL

PUBLIC HOUSES. Doran Simon

Doyle Edmund Henebery Michl. Rockett John Power John Topping Thomas SHOPKEEPERS & TRADERS.

Baldwin William, shopkeeper Carty James, shopkeeper Comerford John, shopkeeper Conway Michael, draper & cooper Curtis Richard, coal merchant, grocer, baker & flour dealer

Dalton John, carpenter Donovan John, shopkeeper Donovan Patrick, lime burner Donovan Patrick, lime burner Egan Richard, plasterer & slater Fitzgerald John, tine burner Fitzgerald Nicholas, lime burner Foley Mary, straw hat maker Funcheon Patrick, shopkeeper Henebery Richard, baker Hickson James, shopkeeper JOIN'T STOCK COMPANY, bakers, &c. M'Grath Catherine, shopkeeper Mahony Patrick, shopkeeper Moore Matthew, butcher

t Power John, carpenter Power Juo, Gam- Power John, grocer [dealer Power John Gambol, earthenware Power Michael, wood ranger Power William, shopkeeper Shelly Walter, draper & shopkeeper Stephenson Edward, carpenter Thompson George, lime burner Thompson William, lime burner Warren Johanna, dress maker Warren Samuel, draper York Elias, shopkeeper

PLACES OF WORSHIP, And their Ministers. PARISH CHURCH-Rev. George Stanly

Monk, rector, Coolfin; Reverend John Thomas Medlycott, Rockett's Castle. ROMAN CATHOLIC CHAPEL-Rev. Michl. Rourke, parish priest; Rev. Patrick Austen and Rev. Walter Curran, curates. PRESBYTERIAN CHAPEL -- Rev. James Clelland, minister.

ONSTABULARY BARRACK - William Thompson, constable.

CAR.
To WATERFORD, & Car, from Edmund
Doyle's, every Monday and Thursday
morning at half-past eight.

RATHCORMAC AND CASTLE-LYONS.

ATHCORMAC is a market and post town (for jof Rathcormac parish, in the year 1841, was 5,324, merly a parliamentary borough), and a parish, in the inclusive of 1,321 inhabitants of the town. bareny of Barrymore, county of Cork, about 140 miles

it was enlarged in 1828, by means of assistance from the Board or First Fruits. The Roman Catholic chapel, building, situated on a gentle acclivity close to the town. a fever hospital and a dispensary. A national school, a as a patriotic statesman and philanthropist. In 1771 parochial school for females, a loan fund, and a Bible a neat Catholic chapel was erected about half a mile green in the deer park of Lord Riversdale. Population and of the town 775 of that number.

CASTLE-LYONS is a neat small market town, in the from Dublin and between 17 and 18 north-east from parish of its name, partly in the barony of Condons and Cork; situated on the river Bride, and between the Clongibbons, but chiefly in that of Barrymore, 21 miles cities above-named. The town consists of one principal E. by N. from Rathcormac, pleasantly situated in a fer-street and a few small ones. Several pretty cottages, tile valley near the river Bride. It was anciently called erected by the Hon. Charles L. Tonson, embellish the Castle Lehan, from the castle belonging to the sept or Cork entrance to the town, and Lord Riversdale's seat clan of Lehan being situated here. On the rains of is a great ornament to the vicinity. With the exception of an extensive tannery, a fine nursery, and an excel-more family, which was consumed by fire in 17/1. lent commercial inn, the business of the place is of that In removing some of the old castle walls a stone general character sustained in rural towns. The senes- | chimney-piece was discovered, on which was inscribed, chal of the manor holds a court occasionally, for the LEHAN O'CVLLANE HEC FECIT MCHII. (Lehan O'Cullane recovery of small debts, and the magistrates assemble erected this in the year 1104), furnishing proof that in petty sessions once a fortnight. The town was private structures of ston, were erected in Ireland at erected into a free borough by Charles II, and the inhabitants obtained the privilege of returning two members corn mill and a small flannel manufactory, there is no to the Irish parliament, which they continued to exer- particular branch of trade here. A manorial court is cise until the Uniou, when the borough was disfran- held occasionally, by the seneschal, under S. Perrot, Esq. of Cork, to whom the manor belongs, and who has The parish church is ancient and rather handsome; established a free school for the children of the parish.

crected in 1816 on a site given by Lord Riversdale, is a In the church-yard, over the family vault, is erected a large cruciform edifice, with a low square tower. The marble statue of James, Earl of Barrymore, who, in the Wesleyans have a small place of worship; and there is reign of Queen Anne, was distinguished for his virtues society, are the other institutions established in Rath- east of the town. The market, chiefly for poultry, is cormac. The inhabitants possess a charter for a mar- held on Thursday. Fairs January 1st, Easter Monday, ket but they do not avail themselves of it. Fairs August Whit-Mouday, August 28th, September 29th, and No-12th and November 9th; these are held on a beautiful vember 16th. Population of the parish, in 1841, 5,536,

303